ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 23, 2003
1:10 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lesil MGQuire, Chair
Representati ve Tom Anderson, Vice Chair
Representative Jim Holm

Representati ve Dan Ogg

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Les Gara

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Max Gruenberg
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 102
"An Act relating to conceal ed deadl y weapons."

- MOVED CSHB 102( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 31
"An Act relating to initiative and referendum petitions; and
providing for an effective date."
- MOVED HB 31 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 5
Proposing an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of
Al aska relating to initiative and referendum petitions.
- MOVED HIR 5 OQUT OF COW TTEE
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 86
"An Act relating to permts issued by the state; and anending
Rul es 65, 79, and 82, Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 102
SHORT TI TLE: CONCEALED DEADLY WEAPONS LEGAL

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 23, 2003



SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
02/ 14/ 03

02/ 14/ 03
02/ 19/ 03
03/ 13/ 03
03/13/03
03/ 27/ 03
03/ 27/ 03
03/ 27/ 03
03/ 28/ 03
04/ 07/ 03
04/ 08/ 03
04/ 08/ 03
04/ 08/ 03
04/ 10/ 03
04/ 10/ 03

04/ 10/ 03
04/ 14/ 03
04/ 14/ 03

04/ 14/ 03

04/ 14/ 03
04/ 14/ 03
04/ 16/ 03
04/ 16/ 03
04/ 16/ 03

04/ 17/ 03
04/ 22/ 03
04/ 23/ 03

BILL: HB 31

REPRESENTATI VE( S) CROFT

Jrn- Page
0215

0215
0257

0688
0830

0960
0960

0960
0960

0977
1017

1030
1058

~—

IIZI ZIZIIII I III ZIIIIIIIIIIIIIZI Z

~ NN N

NN NN N

NN N

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, JUD
COSPONSOR(S): GATTO
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Schedul ed But Not Heard
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( STA)
COSPONSOR( S) :  ANDERSON
COSPONSOR( S): DAHLSTROM KOTT
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( STA)
STA AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Moved CSHB 102( STA) CQut of
Committee -- Tinme Change --
M NUTE( STA)
STA RPT CS(STA) 3DP 3NR
DP: GRUENBERG, DAHLSTROM
HOLM
NR: SEATON, BERKOW TZ,
WEYHRAUCH
FN1: ZEROQ(LAW
COSPONSOR( S): HOLM  SEATON
COSPONSOR('S): SAMUELS, NMASEK
JUD AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( JUD)
COSPONSOR( S) :  HAWKER
CORRECTED CS( STA) RECEI VED
JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

SHORT TI TLE: I NI TI ATl VE/ REFERENDUM PETI Tl ONS
REPRESENTATI VE( S) W LLI AVS

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
01/ 21/ 03
01/ 21/ 03

01/ 21/ 03
03/ 04/ 03
03/ 04/ 03

Jr n- Page
0039
0039

0039

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE

N

Iz Tz

Action
PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, JUD
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Heard & Hel d

April 23, 2003



03/ 04/03 (H M NUTE( STA)
03/ 25/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
03/ 25/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee
03/ 25/ 03 (H M NUTE( STA)
03/31/03 0703 (H STA RPT 2DP 4NR
03/31/03 0703 (H DP: HOLM WEYHRAUCH, NR:
SEATON,
03/31/03 0703 (H GRUENBERG, LYNN, DAHLSTROM
03/31/03 0704 (H) FN1: ZERQ( GOV)
03/31/03 0721 (H COSPONSOR( S) : MEYER
04/ 04/ 03 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
04/ 04/ 03 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( JUD)
04/ 23/ 03 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
BILL: HIR5

SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM | NI TI ATI VE/ REFERENDUM PETI TI ONS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE('S) W LLI ANV

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0025 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)

01/ 21/ 03 0025 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 03 0025 (H STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 04/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 04/ 03 (H Heard & Held

03/ 04/ 03 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 25/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 25/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Conmmttee

03/ 25/ 03 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 31/ 03 0703 (H STA RPT 1DP 5NR

03/ 31/ 03 0703 (H DP: HOLM NR SEATOQN,
GRUENBERG, LYNN,

03/ 31/ 03 0703 (H DAHLSTROM WEYHRAUCH

03/ 31/ 03 0703 (H FN1: (GOV)

03/ 31/ 03 0721 (H COSPONSOR('S): MEYER

04/ 04/ 03 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 04/ 03 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 23/ 03 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 86

SHORT TI TLE: | NJUNCTI ONS AGAI NST PERM TTED PROJECTS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) FATE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
02/ 10/ 03 0169 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 23, 2003



REFERRALS

02/ 10/ 03 0169 (H RES, JUD

02/ 21/ 03 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 21/ 03 (H) Fail ed To Move Qut O
Conmittee

02/ 21/ 03 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 24/ 03 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 24/ 03 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 07/ 03 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/07/03 (H Heard & Held

03/07/03 (H M NUTE( RES)

04/ 02/ 03 0738 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED

04/ 02/ 03 0738 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 02/ 03 0738 (H) RES, JUD

04/ 02/ 03 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 02/ 03 (H Heard & Held

04/ 02/ 03 (H) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 04/ 03 0798 (H COSPONSOR( S):  FOSTER,
ROKEBERG, HOLM

04/ 04/ 03 0798 (H KOTT, LYNN, CHENAULT,
DAHLSTROM W LSON

04/ 04/ 03 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 04/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( RES)

04/ 08/ 03 0837 (H) RES RPT 6DP 1DNP

04/ 08/ 03 0837 (H DP: WOLF, MASEK, MORGAN,
GATTO, LYNN,

04/ 08/ 03 0837 (H FATE; DNP: KERTTULA

04/ 08/ 03 0837 (H FN1: ZERQ( LAW

04/ 08/ 03 0837 (H REFERRED TO JUDI Cl ARY

04/ 09/ 03 0901 (H) COSPONSOR( S) : HEI NZE

04/ 23/ 03 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

MAE ALI CE HOPKI NS
Sol dot na, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns about HB 102.

REPRESENTATI VE ERI C CROFT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 102.

JOHN L. SMALLWOOD
Sol dot na, Al aska

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 23, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 102, and indicated that his
only concern was about the need for training.

BRI AN JUDY, Al aska State Liaison

Institute for Legislative Action

National Rifle Association of Anerica (NRA)
Sacramento, California

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 102.

ROD CHRI STOPHER, Owner

Peni nsul a Weapons Acadeny

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 102, enphasized the
need for training that includes safety, handling of weapons, and
know edge of the law, both for those who carry weapons openly
and those who carry them conceal ed.

ALVIN A. ANDERS, Chair

Al aska Libertarian Party (Juneau);

Secretary, Alaska Libertarian Party (Statew de)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 31 and HIR 5,
saying this change is wunnecessary and doesn't do what its
proponents i ntend.

KATHRYN KURTZ, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As drafting attorney, offered her belief
that HB 31 is vulnerable to a legal <challenge wthout a
constitutional amendnent.

JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SSHB 86 on behalf of
Representative Fate, sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-42, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 23, 2003



CHAIR LESIL MGIRE called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:10 p.m Represent ati ves
McGuire, Anderson, Holm Sanuels, and Gara were present at the
call to order. Representative Ogg arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 102- CONCEALED DEADLY WEAPONS LEGAL

Nunmber 0059

CHAI R MCGUI RE announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 102, "An Act relating to concealed deadly
weapons. " [In packets was CSHB 102(STA), Version 23-LS0515\Q
the corrected version of what was reported from the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.]

Number 0123

MAE ALICE HOPKINS testified on her own behalf. She expressed
concern about the portion of HB 102 that was described by
Representative Croft as relating to Vernont's |laws and that
allows a person who neets current requirenments for a conceal ed-
weapon permt to carry a concealed weapon w thout the permt.
She asked about the process for determning that the person

actually neets the current requirenents. For exanple, will it
be done by a registration of an intent to carry [a conceal ed
weapon]? O wll it come up when the person carrying a weapon
is approached by a |aw enforcenent official? She further asked
whether this portion of the bill increases responsibility for
| aw enforcenent, whet her | aw enf or cenent [ agencies and
personnel] would have access to the nanmes of those who carry
conceal ed weapons wthout a permt, or whether it wll be

assunmed that anyone may be carrying a conceal ed weapon.

M5. HOPKINS told nenbers that as a permt holder, she knows the
i nportance of citizens' know edge of the laws for conceal ed

carrying of a deadly weapon, including restrictions. Most
i nportant, however, is knowedge and skill to handle the
firearm She asked who will check to ensure that carriers of
firearms have a good understanding of the laws and know their
firearns. Enphasizing that it is a conmunity concern, M.

Hopki ns said she didn't see it addressed in the bill.

Number 0284

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 23, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ERI C CRCOFT, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 102, replied that there would be no |ist kept by governnent.
He added:

I'"'m a permt holder as well. | thought much of the
informati on was useful. But right now sonebody does
not have to take any test, and the governnent keeps no
list of people who own guns. ... The distinction that
we're addressing here is between ... "concealed" or
not . And no, ... | wouldn't be in favor of the

governnment having that list, necessarily. W do think
that in a nunber of areas we've hel ped | aw enforcenent
by extending nore broadly the requirenent that vyou
tell [law enforcenent about a conceal ed weapon].

The express reason for the bill, really, is to not
have sone of these requirenents.

M5. HOPKINS observed that people may be overconfident and
m stakenly believe they understand what is needed for them to
carry [a conceal ed weapon], as well as everything there is to
know about the firearm

Number 0459

JOHN L. SMALLWOOD testified on his own behalf, noting that he
also is a permt holder. He offered his understanding that |aws
currently in effect protect nost citizens, and that a person
isn't allowed to have a firearm in possession at hone or
el sewhere unless "qualified and not prohibited by federal or
state law." Referring to an "instant-check” systemin place for
police officers relating to people who already have permts, he
suggested it mght be a good idea with respect to safety. Doing
away with the permtting system as Vernont has done would be
within the constitution, he said, but sonme people mght think it
isn't good enough. He referred to a bill passed by Senator
Robin Taylor the previous year with regard to reciprocity wth
ot her states.

MR, SMALLWOOD indicated training is his only concern about the
bill. He said he likes the idea, if a person is going to carry
a conceal ed weapon and be anong fellow citizens, that sonme kind
of training be required, as well as good know edge of |aws on

conceal ed weapons and sel f-defense. He al so expressed concern
about allowi ng people who don't have training to cone into the
state [with a conceal ed weapon]. As for the permt, however

M. Smallwod said he didn't care one way or the other, since he

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 23, 2003



believes Alaska's constitution includes the "right to carry a
conceal ed weapon for |egitinmate purposes.”

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked Brian Judy, who'd testified at the
previ ous hearing, to state the nost significant parts of current
handgun-trai ning courses that wouldn't be required if this bil
passes, especially safety aspects. He said the big concern is
that sonme segnent of the population that currently is required
to take safety courses won't take them he recalled debate about
how many people wouldn't do so.

Number 0738
BRIAN JUDY, Alaska State Liaison, |Institute for Legislative

Action, National Rifle Association of Anerica (NRA), replied
that he and the NRA assert that the training courses really

don't add nuch to the "safety situation" in Al aska. He said
enpirical evidence from many states, whether they have no
training requirements or significant ones, is the sane: t hat

there aren't any training-related problens. He observed that in
Al aska, a person doesn't need a permt or training to carry a
weapon openly; however, soneone who dons a coat to cover a
firearm nmust take the training and "go through all the other
bureaucratic hoops." He suggested that there is no problem in
Al aska with people "carrying” openly or carrying conceal ed while
engaged in an outdoor activity, which is another exenption from
the permtting requirement. He concluded that nothing indicates
a problem now with people who don't go through a nandatory
training course, and said he doesn't think that woul d change.

MR, JUDY, in further response to Representative Gara, offered
his belief that the existing courses go over state |aws and
handling of firearnms, including |oading and unl oadi ng. Under
existing law, there also is a conpetency requirenent that he
characterized as fairly m nimal.

Nunmber 0910

ROD CHRI STOPHER, Owner, Peninsula Wapons Acadeny, inforned
menbers that Peninsula Wapons Acadeny is a firearns school in

Sol dot na. A weapons inspector for nmore than 20 years, he
reported that he has done inspections for |aw enforcenment, the
mlitary, and the private sector. People cone into his CCW

[carrying a conceal ed weapon] classes who never have held a gun
before; these are nostly females - but a few nales - who want to
carry for protection. The personal protection course is a basic
handgun course that addresses handling, safety, anmunition,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 23, 2003



| oading and wunloading the gun, and so forth; it allows
participants to shoot the weapon and devel op a know edge of how

it feels. Enphasi zing the inportance of learning the |aws, he
expressed concern about turning people |oose on the street who
| ack "weapons know edge, " including safe handling, and who don't

know when or when not to use deadly force. He indicated those
are taught in his classes, and told the commttee that he
believes it is a grave mistake to turn people |oose on the
street w thout training.

CHAIR McGQUI RE asked M. Christopher whether he'd be supportive
of requirements for training, famliarity wth state |laws, and
conpet ency for people who carry weapons openly as well.

MR. CHRI STOPHER said he believes that it's commobn sense to have
all those things when carrying a weapon. Furthernore, he added,
"If you get into a gunfight, God forbid, and you do use deadly
force and you do kill sonebody, that 'concealed carry' permt is
used as an affirmative defense for you in court.”

CHAIR MGU RE remarked, "We're about to change all that in our
other bill." Returning to HB 102, she asked why those
requi renents should be in place for people who carry conceal ed
weapons, since they're not required for those who carry weapons
openl y.

MR. CHRI STOPHER replied, "I can't answer that question, because
| don't know why we don't. | think we should."

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked whether M. Christopher has had
students who believed they could shoot at sonebody in instances
when it is illegal.

MR. CHRI STOPHER said yes, in alnost every class he's taught. He
expl ained, "They are not aware of the acronym JAM which is
j eopardy, ability, and neans. They think if sonebody breaks
into your house, you can automatically shoot them And that's
not true. And this is what I'mtrying to prevent.”

CHAIR MG@U RE asked whether anyone else wshed to testify.
Hearing no response, she then closed public testinony.

Nunber 1170
REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noved to adopt CSHB 102(STA) as the work

draft. There being no objection, CSHB 102(STA) was before the
comittee.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 23, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked Representative Croft what |evel of
burden he believes is inposed on the public by the current
permt requirenment, and why he believes it is unjustified.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT responded that the burden of attending the
course and training is "nmedium" but can result in a significant
time delay for people who feel threatened and want to carry a
conceal ed weapon. He said he'd rather leave it up to the
i ndi vi dual . Acknowl edging that there are reasonable people on
both sides of the issue, he said he believes it conmes down to a
"a fundanental ideological ... definition on who do you trust."
He noted that sone people, including |legislators, believe
[training] ought to be a general requirenent of gun ownership,
and that the governnent should keep a list of owners as well
"I just fundanmentally come down on the opposite side of the
equation,"” he added.

CHAIR M@U RE said she doesn't know, but suspects there was sone
case law, for instance, that said although a person has a Second
Amendnent right to carry a weapon, the right to conceal it isn't
absolute; the state has a [duty of] public protection "and so

forth,” and, thus, there will be qualifiers a state can place
upon it. She asked to hear about any discussion that had taken
pl ace.

REPRESENTATI VE CROFT replied that he didn't know of any cases on
whet her carrying a concealed weapon is a fundanent al
constitutional right, and was fairly certain there hadn't been
any cases since Alaska changed its constitution in 1996 to
clarify that Alaska's [right to keep and bear arns - wth no
reference to concealnent] - is an individual right. He said
there is an ongoing question under the Second Anendnment as to
whether [the right to keep and bear arns] is a "mlitia-
governnmental right or individually held." Ofering to |ook
again, he surmsed that there is so little case law on this
because of a continuing question under federal |aw as to whether
"it's even an enforceable right." He added, "Sone courts hold
that it is; sonme don't. It's the very reason we clarified ours
to be an individual right.

Nunmber 1386
CHAIR M@UJ RE asked what the rationale was when the Al aska
| egi sl ature decided there would be no requirenment for training

and so on when a person carries a weapon openly, but that there
woul d be limtations for carrying a conceal ed weapon.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 23, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE CROFT said he didn't know, he offered to | ook.
He offered his opinion that it hasn't been questioned over tine
or thought through as rigorously as it should have been.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA informed nenbers that he didn't think he'd
be able to vote for this bill, in contrast to the handgun bill
with regard to reciprocity just voted on, on the House floor,
t hat day. He explained that M. Judy and Representative Croft
make a good point about the lack of statistics showing that this
bill would nake Al aska a nore dangerous pl ace. After wei ghing
that heavily, however, Representative Gara said he sides wth
the view espoused by M. Christopher [with regard to the need
for training] - that some people think they may use a gun
[legally] in circunstances when it isn't true, and that sone
peopl e benefit froma gun-safety course. He indicated those are
the reasons for his disconfort with the bill.

CHAIR MGQU RE remarked that it would be nice to know why the
policy exists to begin with; she noted that she still had
unanswered questions. In support of the bill, however, she said
she hadn't been able to put her finger on statistical evidence
that says soneone who carries a conceal ed weapon is nore |ikely
to perpetuate violence or be a risk. Saying it has been an
interesting phil osophical debat e, she conpared it W th
phi | osophi es about whether there is a need to [read nmanuals,
know the law, and get training] to obtain a driver's |icense;
she noted, however, that driving is a privilege, whereas there
is a constitutional right to bear arns. She thanked
parti ci pants.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noved to report [CSHB 102(STA)] out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
zero fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB 102(STA) was
reported fromthe House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

HB 31-1 NI Tl ATl VE/ REFERENDUM PETI TI ONS
HIR 5- CONST AM | NI TI ATl VE/ REFERENDUM PETI Tl ONS

Nunber 1612

CHAIR MGUJU RE announced the that the committee would next
consider HOUSE BILL NO 31, "An Act relating to initiative and
ref erendum petitions; and providing for an effective date"; and
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 5, Proposing an anendnent to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to initiative and
ref erendum petitions.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 23, 2003



CHAIR McGQUI RE recall ed good points made by Representative Gara
at the previous hearing with respect to the burden being placed
on the initiative process in general and on the people gathering
signatures, as well as the effect on costs "and so forth.” She
al so recalled coments by Representatives Sanuels and Anderson
about proportional representation. She said that was her |ine
of thinking as well, that there is an effort to heal the so-
called urban-rural divide in other areas, and that even though
it costs nore to "reach out to rural areas," [the legislature

still does so]; thus perhaps it should be done in this area
al so. She nentioned previous testinony via tel econference and
rem nded nenbers that public testinony was still open.

Number 1708

ALVIN A ANDERS, Chair, Alaska Libertarian Party (Juneau);
Secretary, Alaska Libertarian Party (Statewi de), referred to his
previous testinony and said this bill should be opposed because
it is unnecessary and doesn't acconplish what its proponents
want it to do; the initiative process wrks fine, helping to
i ncrease turnout and voter registration and allowing citizens to
deci de contentious issues. If the sponsors' real goal is to
include nore of the state in the initiative process - rather
than just having the new requirenents act as a "veto" on issues
they don't want to see on the ballot - M. Anders asserted that
the | egislation doesn't acconplish what the sponsors want.

MR. ANDERS suggested it would be better to nmake the initiative
one page so that it could be posted on the Internet, downl oaded
as an Adobe Acrobat file, printed, signed, and mailed in.
Ofering a copy of an initiative petition used in Anchorage and
other areas in the state as an exanple of a one-page form he
assured the commttee that it works fine, that «citizens

signatures are still checked for voter registration, and that
having one page instead of a booklet will make it easier for
"folks in the hinterlands" to fill out and mail in wthout
feeling that they have to get 150 signatures in order to turn in
their petition booklet. He said that reform could be done
w t hout having to do a constitutional amendnent.

MR. ANDERS said he'd like the conmttee to vote against the
| egi sl ation. He suggested that the "very good reform supported
by Ken Jacobus and the Republican Party with regard to instant-
runoff voting failed in the 2002 election because voters were
already upset with the Republicans for the closed primary and
saw the instant-runoff voting as another way that Republicans

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 23, 2003



were trying to seize control of the state. Saying it should
have passed, he said that type of reformis the way to go.

CHAIR McGU RE asked whether anyone else wished to testify on
HB 31 or HIR 5; hearing no response, she then closed public
testi nony on both.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE turned attention specifically to HB 31. She
requested a notion.

Number 1890

REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved [to adopt the proposed CS for HB 31,
Version 23-LS0201\D, Kurtz, 4/7/03, as a work draft].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA obj ected. Saying he wouldn't talk about his
many substantive objections to the bill, he noted, however, that
the constitution says all that is required is a certain total of
signatures fromvoters who reside in two-thirds of the districts

t hroughout the state; the bill makes the signature requirenent
much nore difficult, defeating the intent of the [Al aska State]
Constitution's franers, to his belief. He suggested the bill

woul d be sent back as clearly being unconstitutional.

CHAIR MGQU RE clarified that the notion to adopt the proposed CS
was in error. She requested a notion to rescind it.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG [noved to rescind his notion]. There being
no objection, it was so ordered.

Number 1990

REPRESENTATI VE OGG [noved to report HB 31 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
not e] .

REPRESENTATI VE GARA obj ect ed. He requested that Kathryn Kurtz
tell the comittee what she thinks about the Dbill's
constitutionality.

Number 2018

KATHRYN KURTZ, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel, Legislative
Legal and Research Servi ces, Legislative Affairs Agency,
drafting attorney for HB 31, offered her sense that the bill
adds a requirenent for initiative petitions above and beyond
what is specified in the constitution; she suggested that

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 23, 2003



W thout a constitutional anendnent, the bill 1is potentially
vul nerabl e to | egal chall enge.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked Ms. Kurtz, if she were a judge ruling
on the information she has, whether she would say it is nore
| i kely than not that the bill would be unconstitutional.

M5. KURTZ replied, "I would."

CHAIR McGU RE pointed out that HIR 5 proposes an anendnment to
the constitution for that reason. She expressed appreciation to
Ms. Kurtz for her legal nenorandum on the subject, and said
there is no question that both the statute and the constitution
need to be anended [if this lawis to be changed].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA nui nt ai ned his obj ection.

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Sanuel s, Anderson

Qgg, Holm and McCGuire voted in favor of reporting HB 31 from
committee. Representative Gara voted against it. Ther ef or e,
HB 31 was reported from the House Judiciary Standing Commttee
by a vote of 5-1.

Number 2132

REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved to report HIR 5 out of commttee [with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanying fiscal note].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA obj ect ed. He expl ained that he'd heard al
the points in favor of changing the initiative process, but
di sagr eed. First, he said, this wll [imt peopl es’
constitutional rights, which he believes should only occur when
there is an incredibly conpelling reason to do it; however, he'd
heard no such conpelling reason. Furthernore, although it isn't
the intention of the sponsor or the commttee, he said that
making it nore burdensonme to collect signatures wll preserve
the initiative process only for the wealthiest people who have
the staff to go to [30] different districts to gain 500 or 1,000
signatures in each district.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA offered his belief that perhaps Al askans'
nost inportant right with regard to denocracy is the right to
take a matter into their own hands and put it on the ballot.
Wth respect to the ability of people who Ilive outside of
Anchorage to have initiatives placed on the ballot, he said the
current systemis fair because no matter how many signatures are
obtained from various districts, the question is whether the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 23, 2003



majority of Alaskans wll vote for an initiative at the ball ot
box. He said that is how denocracy works, and that he couldn't
support HIR 5.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM offered his belief that the preservation of
the rights of one set of people at the expense of another is in
j eopardy wthout passage of this [legislation]. He suggested
that Al aska is unique because nore than half of the popul ation
lives in one area and thus can pass |laws that adversely affect
rural residents all over the state. He asserted that people in
this country have a representative republic, not a denocracy.
He added, "W try to make sure that the majority cannot act in
an wunruly manner to subject the mnority to its whins."
Representative Holmsaid it isn't unreasonable to require a seat
at the table for people whose cultures and lives wll be
affected by laws or initiatives. He suggested that this
[constitutional change] would allow that seat at the table, and
that it would be a grave injustice to do otherw se.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG  concurred wth Representati ve Hol m s
conment s. He al so suggested that the novenent here is towards
exercising denocracy in its truest form since [the proposed
constitutional change] will be submtted to the voters.

TAPE 03-42, SIDE B
Number 2380

REPRESENTATI VE OGG concl uded by saying this is a suggestion [to
voters] that this is a good direction, and that if they see fit
to pass it, they will. [If not, the people will have spoken.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA acknow edged that as a fair point, and said
al though [HB 31] takes away peoples' rights w thout asking their
permssion, HIR 5 asks their permssion before doing so.
Nevert hel ess, he said he thinks [changing the initiative process
in this way] is a bad policy for the reasons he'd stated
earlier.

Nunmber 2297

A roll <call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Anderson, gg,
Holm Sanuels, and MGuire voted in favor of reporting HIR 5
from commttee. Representative (Gara voted against it.

Therefore, HIR 5 was reported from the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee by a vote of 5-1.

[HB 31 was reported fromcomrittee earlier by a vote of 5-1.]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- April 23, 2003



HB 86- 1 NJUNCTI ONS AGAI NST PERM TTED PROJECTS

Nunber 2287

CHAI R McGUI RE announced that the final order of business would
be SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 86, "An Act relating to
permts issued by the state; and anending Rules 65, 79, and 82,
Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure.™

CHAIR McGUIRE indicated no testifiers had signed up.
Number 2275

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented SSHB 86 on behal f of Representative Fate,
sponsor, noting that the bill had been rewitten in order to
pass nuster constitutionally. M. Pound explained that it
approaches the issue of asking for and receiving injunctions
that delay work on already permtted projects. Under current
law, a plaintiff who files for an injunction against a project
and loses in court is responsible for part of the court costs
and part of the attorney fees for the defendant. I ndi cating the
bill will guide the judiciary but |eave decisions up to the
bench, he told nmenbers that SSHB 86 nakes those who inproperly
seek and cause an injunction responsible for full court costs
and attorney fees.

MR. POUND explained that SSHB 86 also adds statutory | anguage
which requires that costs incurred as the result of a delay wll
be paid for by the responsible party; those include wages and
salaries for enployees working on the project, material costs,
and penalties and interest on contracts associated with the
project. Wen a project is permtted, a contractor goes to work
hiring enpl oyees and purchasing materials; these are commtnents
that a contractor makes. An inproper delay of a project costs
nore than just court costs and attorney fees, he said; it
di srupts the lives of the contractor, his or her enployees, and
subcontractors who do the work. "It is unreasonable for sonmeone
to have an effect on this many lives w thout bearing sone of the
true cost,” he concluded, adding that SSHB 86 neans that the
responsi ble party will have to be responsible. He urged support
for the bill

CHAIR McGUI RE brought attention to the phrase "bad faith |ega
chal l enge” on page 1, line 10. She asked whether that is

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- April 23, 2003



referring to Rule 11 [of the Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure] as
the standard that will be in | aw.

MR. POUND replied that "bad faith" cones up a lot in insurance
[case] law and that it seenms every judge has a different
definition for what it is or isn't. "We're leaving that to the
di scretion of the bench,"” he specified.

CHAIR McGU RE offered her belief that Rule 11 sets up that
standard, whereas this would leave it to the judge's discretion.
She asked at what stage of the Ilitigation the bad-faith
determ nati on woul d be nade.

MR. POUND offered his understanding that in nost cases, it wll
be determned with the final decision by the judge or jury
because it will fall under "the substantially prevail
situation.”

Number 2155

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked why the present court rules that dea
with frivolous |awsuits don't cover this issue.

MR, POUND replied that existing court rules allow for partial
court costs and partial attorney fees, but nothing else for a
construction-type project.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG noted that [ page 1, line 11] says
"substantially prevail". He asked whet her soneone could prevai
and yet not "substantially prevail", and thus could be a w nner

but also a | oser under this.

MR. POUND r esponded:

That is another one of the terns, sort of |ike "bad
faith", where a lot of it ... really depends on the
particular court and particular judge. ... About the
best definition I could come up with came out of the

US. Fifth Grcuit Court [of Appeals is]: a plaintiff
may be considered a prevailing party - which they do
reference back to "substantially prevail” - if they
succeeded on any significant issue of litigation ...
whi ch achieves sone of the benefits that the party
sought in bringing the suit.

Nunber 2078

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 23, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked whether M. Pound believes that
"prevailing” isn't a high enough [standard].

MR. POUND responded, "I believe we need to have a higher
standard in order to spell out what the legislative intent is.”
He relayed that the goal is to elimnate frivolous suits and
frivolous injunctions before the process ever starts.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG observed that there are penalties for people
who bring frivolous |awsuits. He requested clarification about
bringing those together [under] the "substantially prevail”
st andar d.

MR. POUND replied that frivolous lawsuits fall into one category
that presently allows for partial court <costs and partial
attorney fees. However, this primarily deals with permtted
projects that have gone through the entire public process and
"all the hoops" to get the needed permts. He used as an
exanple an intertie fromthe Healy coal project up to Fairbanks
that had gone through all the permtting: Sonmeone filed a
| awsuit saying it was an eyesore and received an injunction that
held the project up for nearly a year and a half. There were
mllions of dollars in attorney fees [and court costs]. There

al so were people, including contractors and |aborers, who were
unable to work on the project, although they'd planned to do so
and had nmade related commtnents to subcontractors and for
mat eri al s. He said that while it my not be considered a
frivolous lawsuit, the judge may look at the information basic
to the injunction process, grant the injunction, and then |later
decide there was no reason for it in the first place.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked whether the court action was determ ned
to have been frivolous in the precedi ng exanpl e.

MR. POUND apol ogi zed, saying he wasn't that famliar with the
case, but knows the project is now noving forward. He offered
his belief that "all the conpany got out of it was [attorney]
fees and court costs.”

CHAI R MQU RE shared a point brought to her attention, that Rule
11 deals wth sanctions against att or neys, rat her than
plaintiffs thensel ves.

Nunber 1912

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON remarked that he could see the nerit of
the bill on face value, since an injunction delays a project,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- April 23, 2003



thereby slowi ng devel opnent and economc growh, and since a

person would be less likely - wunder the bill - to unjustly
pursue delaying a project. Conversely, however, it would
di scourage a person from [rightly] seeking an injunction agai nst
a state-permtted project. He nentioned the confusion in the

commttee over Rule 11 and bad faith; he suggested that
di scussing those is appropriate for the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON acknowl edged that sonetines injunctions
produce results beneficial to the public. He referred to page 2
[lines 6-7], which read, "(5) any other costs or danmages that
the person who is materially danaged denonstrates were caused by
the disruption.” Characterizing those damges as "fairly
expansive," he cautioned against making it so prohibitive that
people are frightened away from to [seeking an appropriate
i njunction]. He again highlighted the undefined nature of "bad
faith."

MR. POUND reiterated that the "bad-faith" argunent is seen a | ot
in "insurance case law" He suggested that Ileaving its
definition up to the bench woul d be best.

CHAIR MGU RE asked, "Wy don't we just make it :
discretionary to the judge to award damages as well, so the
defining of '"bad faith' is [discretionary] and then the awarding
of damages is discretionary too? Wy do we have it as 'shall be
| i abl e' ?"

MR. POUND indicated that [the bill] expands it beyond the
di scretionary court costs and attorney fees that currently can
be awarded under the court rules.

Number 1751
REPRESENTATI VE GARA expl ai ned his concerns. First, the bill is
confusing, he said, apart from the substance. It says a person

should not be allowed to file a bad-faith injunction. Although
it is a fair point, Representative Gara noted that he'd asked
| egi sl ative counsel to share with him the standards one nust
neet before being able to obtain an injunction or prelimnary
injunction in the first place. He reported that injunctions
rarely are granted; furthernore, the issue of whether a claimis
frivolous is always dealt wth in an injunction case at the
out set .

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, to that point, referred to page 3 of a
menor andum [dated April 7, 2003] he'd received from Kathryn

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- April 23, 2003



Kurtz, legislative drafter, noting that it quotes from an Al aska
case wth regard to the abuse-of-discretion standard and
bal ance-of - hardshi ps test used by the Al aska Suprene Court to
review prelimnary and tenporary injunctions. Representati ve
Gara pointed out that it says the plaintiff nust raise serious
and substantial questions going to the nerits of the case; that
is, the issues raised cannot be frivolous or obviously wthout
merit. Representative Gara summarized by saying that before a
court will prohibit sonmeone from doing sonmething pending the
outcone of a trial, the court already inposes a heightened
standard and says that it had better not be a frivolous claim
and there is a hearing on that.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA questioned the need for the bill, noting
that if it passes, the court would make the determ nation at the
outset and have a hearing to ensure there was nerit to the
claim the defendant would get a second bite at the apple later
by requesting another hearing on whether the claim was
frivol ous. He said it seens the protection already exists, and
asked whether the need to change existing law had been
[ t horoughl y] consi dered.

MR. POUND responded, "Essentially, that's correct. But the
reality of it is,"” he added, "when it's all said and done, the
judge | ooks at the defendant and says, 'W'll award you part of

your [attorney] fees and part of your court costs.'"

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied, "I could agree wth what vyou
wanted; | think what you want is already in the |aw, though."
He offered his understanding that [the sponsor wants nore than
partial attorney fees] if soneone has filed a frivolous claim
and obtained an injunction; in that case, he agreed that the
person should be entitled to full attorney fees, but relayed his
belief that [a party already may be awarded full attorney fees]
under Rule 11 or Rule 82, the way the courts interpret it, when
a claim is frivol ous. He suggested that it 1is "sort of
circular" whether an injunction can properly be obtained on a
frivolous claim in the first place, because it appears that
hurdle with the court nust be cleared first. Hi ghlighting how
unlikely it would be to have a frivolous injunction, he
reiterated that he agreed with awarding full attorney fees if it
happened.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained that his bigger concern with the

bill, however, is that it goes beyond awarding full attorney
fees. It says the plaintiff may be charged for all lost profits
during the tine the injunction was in place. He said that if

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- April 23, 2003



the other renmedies were deleted and it just said full attorney
fees, he'd sign off on the bill right now However, he said he
worries about real-world exanpl es.

Nunmber 1699

REPRESENTATI VE GARA offered an exanple of a "gas |ease off the
Kenai River" for which sone fishernen believe that it is a bad
idea and that the gas lease is illegal. They succeed in getting
an injunction from a court that sees it as a good-faith claim
The injunction lasts two years, and ultinmately the plaintiffs

| ose for whatever reason. It has cost the oil conpany mllions
of doll ars. Representative Gara noted that under the bill, a
fi sherman or average person, when filing for such an injunction

could be liable for mllions of dollars. Furthernore, under
Rule 65, the person would have to post a nultimllion-dollar
bond before filing the suit. He suggested that it would |eave

injunction |aw available to just the richest of people, knocking
95 percent of Al askans out of the mx. He asked why that would
be good policy.

MR. POUND answered by posing a scenario in which a commerci al
fisherman owns a boat, has boat paynents, has house paynents

and has a crew working for him If a group decides to get an
i njunction because that fisherman m ght catch a seal in his net,
that fisherman would |lose the entire season of fishing and
instead spend it in court, hiring an attorney and incurring
court costs. He asked, "If it was a frivolous case, why should
you not be allowed to recover your | oss?"

REPRESENTATI VE GARA repli ed:

If we could wite a law that said in that case, you
can get the renedies you have in this bill, but in the
ot her case, when you're trying to get them against the
fisherman and you're the oil conpany and you woul dn't
apply this bill, 1'd be K with that. But the reality
is, to apply it in your case, you also have to [have]
it apply in ny case. And by passing this bill, it's
going to be a bill of ... general applicability. It
will be used by the large oil conpanies to scare a
fisherman out of court in the first place.

MR. POUND responded, "I"'mnot inclined to say that the |arge oi

conpanies won't use this." He suggested a hypothetica
situation in which an oil-service conpany subcontracts to
anot her conpany, which subcontracts to another conpany, which,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- April 23, 2003



ultimately, hires an enployee, all under a contract. Once a
project is stopped at the highest level, it has a trickle-down
effect that hurts not just the large corporation, but also the
i ndi vi dual who just wants to go to worKk.

Nunber 1448

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked M. Pound whether he has any evidence
that too many frivol ous injunctions are being granted today.

MR. POUND replied:

| have no specific -- but this is also a preventative
[ measure]. W have many large projects that are
getting ready to start in this state in the next four
years; ... certainly the potential 1is going to
increase as we start |ooking at resource devel opnent
in the state.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS remarked that it's not only the |ost

profits, but also the |ost operating expense. He suggested
deciding on a policy, regardless of whether it is a big oil
conpany or sone snmall construction conpany. If sonmeone is

filing an injunction in bad faith and talks a judge into it, and
the judge later decides |[the plaintiff] should have known
better, that the person should be puni shed, he opined.

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM on the issue of whether any frivolous
| awsuits have been filed, nentioned a right-of-way for Golden
Vall ey Electric Association (GVEA) that was conpletely permtted
across the Tanana Flats. Wen soneone sued, it cost $7 mllion
and nine years of greater costs in electrical power to the
people of Interior Al aska, but there was no penalty, no charges
for attorney fees, and no reinbursenent whatsoever, he said. He
added that he believes this bill is intended reduce | awsuits.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM opined that [Representative Garal] is nore
concerned about preserving the profits of attorneys, whereas he
hinself is worried about preserving the profits of others.

Number 1273

REPRESENTATI VE GARA obj ected on "a point of personal privilege."

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked, "This bill preserves the profits of
attorneys, right?"

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- April 23, 2003



CHAIR MGJ RE warned: "Wl |, let's be careful, t here

Representative Holm Representative Gara doesn't practice in
this area of law, and | don't think he's trying to preserve
profits.”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM suggested there is a concern about
preserving the ability of attorneys to be conpensated for what
they are doing. He then referred to the discussion that this
bill allows the judge to decide whether the case is substanti al
or has nerit. He said he could offer hundreds of exanples -
al though he didn't have them at his fingertips - where judges
have, in his opinion, "ruled very inappropriately.” He said it
may be correct that Rule 11 says attorneys can be sanctioned for
i nappropriate or frivolous actions, but then he alluded to a
successful lawsuit against [the MDonald s Corporation] over
sone very hot coffee, and suggested that many tines, judges take
cases just to nake a nane for thensel ves.

CHAIR MGU RE acknow edged Representative Holms frustration.

She said she doesn't believe the bill's premse is wong, and
opined that injunctions probably are too liberally granted in
sone areas. However, she observed, at |east seven different
ternms seem vague, including "substantially prevail"”, "materially
damage", "disrupt", and "inproperly disrupt"”. Not wi t hst andi ng
M. Pound's suggestion that "bad faith" would be interpreted by
a judge, she enphasized the there is still a need to consider

si deboards and definitions. She asked whether, for exanple, if
a judge determines that a person was correct on two clains but
not a third, does that constitute "substantially prevail"?

CHAIR McGU RE also asked M. Pound whether there had been any
consideration given to looking at Rule 65 itself with regard to
raising the standard for when a court wll actually grant an
i njunction. I nstead of inposing |large penalties on people [who
obtain injunctions], she suggested that a higher standard could
provide a "stopping point" for the judge because of the

consequences on businesses, jobs, "and so forth."™ She remarked
that if sonething is right, it is right for big businesses,
smal | businesses, and individual enployees. She noted that

corporations represent working people because they provide jobs
for the average nmen and wonen in Al aska.

Nunber 0963
CHAIR McGUI RE added that she's long believed Rule 11 doesn't

have enough teeth, but questioned whether creating a whole new
“crinme/penalty" is the right way to go. She agreed wth

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- April 23, 2003



[ Represent ati ve Anderson] about not wanting a chilling effect on
a person who believes sonmething is wong but who doesn't have a
mllion-dollar bond. She again asked M. Pound whether there
had been any consideration given to looking at Rule 65 itself
and raising the standard for injunctions.

MR. POUND referred to discussions with the Departnent of Law and
said the departnment was |eaning towards dropping any reference
to the court rules whatsoever. He noted that he had an
anmendnent to that effect.

CHAIR MGUI RE clarified that she agrees there are many instances
when sonmeone files for an injunction to purposely disrupt an
econom cally viable and environnentally sound project for inpure
notives; she said Rule 11 could apply to an attorney that woul d
bring that [action]. Putting that aside and |ooking at the
plaintiffs thensel ves, however, she expl ai ned:

W're saying that bad faith is a standard in and of

itself, and | don't disagree that we ought to have
one. But | think it's the comm serate danages that
you're then asking this individual ... to pay, which
could be literally billions of dollars, that 1is
sonmewhat troubling to ne from the standpoint of
chilling legitimate injunctions that m ght be granted.

And so | guess what |I'm wondering is whether or not we
don't want to go back one step - rather than the point
at which it's already said and done and you've got a
billion-dollar penalty hanging over your head - that
you go back up one step, to the granting of the
injunction itself, and put nore teeth in that, so that
the judge has the ability to say, "This doesn't | ook

right, feel right, or anything else; we're not
granting the injunction.” And ... i f t hese
injunctions have been granted in a frivolous way,
clearly, either the judge ... has done it inproperly
or the judge doesn't have enough tools at his or her
di sposal

CHAIR McGQUIRE, in response to M. Pound, specified that she was
speaking of Rule 65, not Rule 11, since the latter clearly deals
W th sanctions agai nst attorneys.

Nunber 0748

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- April 23, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE OGG suggested focusing on the |aws thensel ves.
He said the fishing industry has been held up many tinmes by "the
environnmental side of progranms,” even though in good faith. He
suggested the problemis that the statutes and regul ati ons under
whi ch the agencies manage the fisheries aren't tight enough as
witten. He explained, "They don't have the information, or
they're witten in such a way that, in good faith, sonebody can
cone and, based on that law, say that this fishery is not being

managed properly.” He read from Rule 11 and indicated that if
the permt law is wong itself, an injunction could be done in
good faith and yet there could be a chilling effect "based on

what you have here.”

REPRESENTATI VE OGG offered his belief that a defendant has the
ability to file a counterclaim for conpensatory damages under
the present law in relation to an injunction. He questioned the
need to duplicate it with SSHB 86.

MR. POUND responded that this bill is primarily designed to
clarify what those conpensatory danages could be. Now, he
suggested, it is anyone's guess regarding what would be awarded
under existing statute.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG noted that M. Pound hadn't previously
menti oned counterclainms, and said he wanted nore tine to study
this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS referred to page 2 and said sonebody is
going to pay for the costs incurred. Assuming it is a bad-faith
i njunction, he suggested that everyone will pay for it because
of higher insurance costs "and so forth." He said he agreed
with the need to separate the good-faith clains from the bad-
faith clains, however, adding that people who go forward wth
bad-faith clains should pay full costs, not just attorney fees.

Number 0423

CHAIR McGQUI RE said she believed that was a valid point. When
the situation is at the point when the bill applies, she noted,
everyone will be in a bad spot: all the costs will have been
expended, and soneone wll have to pay them She enphasi zed,
however, that she wants to "bunmp it back a step” to avoid all
t he danmages that anyone would pay, one way or the other. She

again nentioned altering the injunction standard.

CHAIR McGU RE of fered her understanding that the statute brought
up by Representative Ogg is AS 09.40.230, nentioned in the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- April 23, 2003



menor andum [from Ms. Kurtz]. She suggested that that statute
could be a place [for anendnent], since it pertains to the

authorization for an injunction itself. She proposed perhaps
adding a [paragraph] (4) to that statute to specify that it
cannot be based on bad faith "and so forth,” to raise [the

standard] nore, "if you don't think Rule 11 gets you there."

REPRESENTATI VE  GARA  suggest ed, heated discussion to the
contrary, that there wasn't that much difference of opinion on
the bill. He surmsed that if Rule 11 were clarified to provide
full attorney fees for a frivolous lawsuit, that would resolve
the problem He said that this isn't a matter of people suing

cor porations. Rat her, this addresses the public process - the
right of citizens to challenge their governnent's conduct. He
cautioned about treading softly in this area, noting that this
bill only cones into play if the governnent issues a permt and

a citizen believes the governnent didn't act properly. He said
that businesses know this is part of the governnental process:
the permt is issued, and soneone may challenge it, which is
likely to happen on a controversial project - the public is
invited to the table.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA pointed out that what stops people from
i mproperly challenging the governnent's conduct in a way that
causes businesses huge anobunts of wunjustified damages is the
threat of paying huge anounts of attorney fees if the lawsuit is
unsuccessful - the bigger the project, the nore attorney fees.
He noted that even against a small business, attorney fees m ght
be $50, 000, whereas against a |arge business the amount of m ght
be up to $1 mllion. Again proposing to clarify Rule 11, he
enphasized that the law already deters people from doing
frivolous things in court.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA suggested this bill could be rewitten to
deter people from doing things frivolously, but cautioned
agai nst requiring damages to include [all those listed in the
bill]. He enphasized that this could "chill sonmebody out of the
courtroom and would take away citizens' rights to challenge
government conduct in cases involving large and mediumsized
cor porati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA referred to Representative Holnms nmention of
the GVEA case; he noted that Representative Holm had indicated
the court allowed the injunction and that the plaintiff wasn't
penal i zed. Representative Gara remarked that this suggests that
what Representative Ogg said was correct.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- April 23, 2003



TAPE 03-43, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, el aborating, said that perhaps when the |aw
allows for an injunction, nmaybe it's the law that the sponsor
has the dispute wth - maybe the law is a bad law - but the
court was enforcing the law. He suggested that if the plaintiff
had a frivolous claim it would not have held up the project for
10 years. The claim probably involved a |law that many woul d
disagree with; that's different from a frivolous claim By
increasing the penalty for attorney fees and |ost profits, the
| egi slature has just closed the courtroom doors, taken away
peopl es' due process rights, and peoples’ rights to chall enge
the governnent. |It's a bal ance.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA acknowl edged Representative Sanuels's point
that there's a burden on the business community, especially when
they're doing things right. Al askans try to appoint the best
j udges possible, he noted, adding that there is a high standard
before a plaintiff can get an injunction. He said he would |ike
to hear strong evidence that injunctions are being issued wlly-
nilly, for no good reason; he remarked that he doesn't think
that is happening. He surm sed that judges have made terrible
m stakes in the past, but noted that it's not happening in a big
enough way to justify a radical change in the law as is proposed
by SSHB 86.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG read sections of Rule 65, noting that there
is always a balancing test in the court: The plaintiff nust be
faced with irreparable harm and the plaintiffs have to nake a
showi ng of what that is. In sone [cases], he explained, the
court will require bonding by the plaintiff to cover the damages
the defendant nmay suffer should the case not work out in the
[plaintiff's] favor. The court has plenty of tools, he said,
adding that the plaintiff nust raise serious and substanti al
guestions going to the merits of the case. Al of these things
are discussed by the court and the opposing parties before the
judge grants the injunction.

Nunber 0201

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said that [an injunction] is a very serious
nove on the part of the court and there are high standards
before the court will grant an injunction. He said sone study
of this would be helpful before the commttee starts changing
t hi ngs. Maybe the answer, he surmsed, involves adding nore
teeth to the statute that deals with injunctions. He said he

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- April 23, 2003



agrees that these standards should surface early in the |awsuit
process, not after everybody has expended tine and energy in
court; that determnation of a frivolous case needs to be nade
upfront. He said he thinks that Rule 65 requires that [nmerit]
has to be [denbnstrated] before an injunction is granted.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS reiterated that "sonebody has to pay."
He then proffered the following exanple of an air carrier wth

an i njunction prohi biting it from flying to certain
destinati ons. Wiile the injunction is in force, the carrier
still has to make aircraft paynments, still has 450 enployees to
pay, and still has leases to pay and sales to honor. The
business's noney is tied up, with the conpany never know ng when
the injunction will be lifted. The situation worsens: t he
enpl oyees being laid off are finding other jobs, and there are
training costs for new ticket agents and ranp workers. That's

the way a large oil conpany | ooks at an injunction, he surm sed.
So once the injunction is lifted, and the case is determned to
be frivolous according to SSHB 86, who nakes the business whol e,
he asked. Who makes up for the aircraft that were returned or
who gets the conpany out of bankruptcy?

REPRESENTATI VE GARA remarked that if such an exanple were the
reality, he would be nmuch nore synpathetic to the bill. But its
not, he assured nenbers, adding that "that's why nobody has ever
gotten an injunction against your conpany to keep it from flying
all over the state.”

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS argued there have been injunctions
agai nst airlines.

Nunber 0514

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said it's not so easy to get an injunction
for no reason, adding that SSHB 86 has to do with a reality
that's different from the hypothetical case Representative
Samuel s presented. This bill concerns state permts and whet her
sonmeone can get an injunction that says a state permt is
i nvalid. He said he disagrees that sonebody can get an
injunction easily for no reason; it's just not that easy and it
doesn't happen. Were injunctions against state permts an
everyday circunstance, were this happening all the tine, he
said, he would support this bill. But its not; he said the
commttee is considering a bill to deal with a circunstance that
doesn't exist. If the commttee considers the circunstances
that do exist, all of a sudden the injunctions start | ooking
r easonabl e. Were there ranpant injunctions out there for

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 28- April 23, 2003



illogical reasons, he would be nuch nore synpathetic, he said;
however, that isn't the case.

CHAIR MGU RE remarked that, clearly, [injunctions] wll involve
things in which developnent is occurring and generally it
pertains to sub-surface developnent, oil and gas, mnerals,
railroads, et cetera. She noted that there is a tendency to
villainize the oil and gas and devel opnent industries of the
state.

CHAIR MGURE requested a few real-life exanples from the
sponsor's staff. She said that she agrees wth what
Representative Sanmuels and M. Pound are saying with respect to
the policy, and with what Representatives Gara and QOgg are
saying with regard to the chilling effect. She acknow edged
that nore information would help identify any areas in which
injunctions are being inproperly granted. Furthernore, she also
acknow edged, this could be the fault of the legislature in not
changing the court rule or the statute or both in order to
provide the judge nore guidance. She agreed that Rule 11 in
conbination wth Rule 65 and AS 09.40. 230, regar di ng
aut hori zations for injunctions in the Al aska Statutes, should be
enough for a judge to review sonething that's clearly in bad
faith and [deny the injunction] based wupon one of the
af orement i oned.

Number 0912

MR. POUND directed the commttee's attention to the commttee
packet, which included six pages from Stoel Rives, LLP, of cases
from states other than Alaska that are representations from
environnmental | aw. He offered the followng as a quote from
Fran U ner: "Anyone advocating nore narine protection areas in
Alaska nust be able to denonstrate convincing scientific
evidence that such an extrene action is necessary and not be
driven by sinplistic desire to limt comrercial fishing."

MR. POUND expl ai ned that when an individual or group chall enges
a permt, the first process should be the admnistrative

process. Utimately, when these go to court, they go through
superior court, where they fall wunder a different set of
gui del i nes because there are standards of review for
adm nistrative proceedings at the superior court |evel. \V/ g

Pound clainmed that nonprofit law firnms tend to approach many of
their cases in the sane manner as the advertising which inplies
that [Alaska] is killing wlves left and right. He added t hat

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -29- April 23, 2003



he wouldn't put it past such groups to use the same tactics in
their initial argunment to obtain an injunction.

Nunmber 1039

CHAIR McQU RE noted that a judge is allowed to weigh scientific
i nformati on. Therefore, she suggested including a separate
standard for environmental-related injunctions under Title 9
wherein "the Fran U nmer standard" is adopted. Such a standard
would require that one denonstrate convincing scientific
evi dence that an extreme action is necessary.

MR. POUND pointed out that such |anguage was included in the
original |egislation; however, there was a [potential] problem
pertaining to due process. Therefore, the sponsor substitute
was introduced and its language is a variation of Uah's | aw

CHAIR MGQURE noted that the judge is already ascertaining
whether it's broad and in good faith. She also noted that in
the area of injunctions, a series of three different additiona
questions nust be answered before an injunction can be issued.

Therefore, she said she still questions why a judge couldn't
deci de whether the injunction request is based on scientific
i nformation. She asked if there is a legal opinion on the due

process issue.

MR. POUND answered that both Legislative Legal and Research
Services and the Departnent of Law agreed that there were due
process probl ens.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said that the GVEA situation is a classic

exanple of "this." He noted that when he was on the borough
assenbly, it dealt with this problem at |ength because [the
process resulted in] 100,000 people in the borough having
increased electric paynents for seven years. When the process
finally went through for an expansion of GVEA, Fort Knox entered
[the market] and the cut price in the area by 20 percent. He

rel ayed his understanding that Representative Fate is trying to
create a positive environnment for econom c devel opnent rather
than one that is under the thunb of potential litigation. He
agreed that [the |egislature] doesn't want to chill the ability
of people to question governnent.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if there is some nethodol ogy whereby
[the law] could require judges to cone down on certain sides of
issues rather than providing freedom with their judgnents.
Al t hough he said he didn't know how the process works, he said

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 30- April 23, 2003



he did know how it inpacts people when the process is stopped
even though the individual has gone through all the proper
st eps. For exanple, he noted, the Susitna Dam was stopped due
to litigation. He added that if the purpose is to put Al aska on
firm financial footing, then these issues need to be addressed
W t hout destroying the ability of people to address governnent's
i nappropriate actions.

Nunber 1381

REPRESENTATI VE OGG stated that when there is an anbiguity in
|l aw, the courts try to tighten it up and nmake it clear, which
the legislature can do when it sees the need to clarify the
court's discretion. He pointed to mandatory sentencing as an
exanple, and noted the need to be careful when crafting such.
Representative Ogg nentioned that in none of the cases cited in
the backup material was there an exanple in which the appellate
court said an injunction was granted and it was frivolous to
begin with, [or] that the trial judge nmade an error at the
i nception. Representative Ogg requested that concrete exanples
be provided to the commttee, preferably fromthe Ninth Crcuit
Court of Appeals or the Alaska Suprene Court. If there aren't
any cases in Alaska in which the courts say that the injunction
was granted on a frivolous basis, then there isn't a problem he
surmsed; if there are such cases, the judges' [remarks] could
be reviewed and the | anguage could be crafted such that it does
t he nost good.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA remnded the conmmttee of a well-neaning
district attorney who was recently before the commttee
presenting one side of a case saying it was outrageous.
However, the district attorney left out the other side.
Therefore, Representative Gara said, it would be hel pful to have
both sides of the story in the exanples. He said he believes
this is about snail darters and the Susitna Dam in sone sense.
In such cases, the problem isn't the injunction process but
rather the law that the court is enforcing.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA relayed his understanding that in the snail
darter situation, there was a law that said snail darters are an
endangered speci es. If there is a law specifying that, or
supporting such a conclusion, then perhaps an injunction is
warranted and maybe sonmeone should revisit the |law classifying
the snail darter as an endangered speci es. Wth regard to the
Susitna Dam Representative Gara recalled that there was a
vigorous debate with regard to whether the project was one in
which the economc benefits exceeded its fisheries inpact or

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -31- April 23, 2003



whet her the fisheries inpact exceed the economc benefits;
again, the question relates to Alaska's law rather than the
i njunction process. Representative Gara predicted that in nost
of these cases, one would find exanples in which courts are
enforcing existing | aws.

Nunber 1611

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS offered his belief that a dam project
woul d involve groups that are philosophically opposed to the dam
and that would look for a way to slow down the project. Wth
regard to the suggestion that injunctions are part of the
process, he opined that injunctions are part of the problemwth
t he process.

CHAI R Mc@GUJ RE announced that she would hold SSHB 86 over unti
[the next neeting].

ADJ OQURNIVENT
Nunber 1684

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 5:17 p.m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -32- April 23, 2003



